Passif - Thierry en Angleterre 16
 

Décrire un processus.
Le passif.
 

	Sarah arrive complètement affolée... Elle vient d'apprendre une terrible nouvelle.

	Sarah
	- Hey, Thierry. Have you heard what happened to Jim?
Well, Jim was driving on the M6 when he was hit by a coach. How did it happen exactly? I don't know.
Jim was thrown out of his car. He was taken to hospital by an ambulance. Both his legs are injured. He won't be allowed to leave the hospital till two weeks. 

What a bad luck!
	- Dis, Thierry. As-tu entendu ce qui est arrivé à Jim?
Eh bien, Jim était en train de conduire sur la M6 quand il a été percuté par un bus. Comment c'est arrivé? Je ne sais pas.
Jim a été éjecté de sa voiture. Il a été emmené à l'hôpital par une ambulance. Ses deux jambes sont blessées. Il ne sera pas autorisé à quitter l'hôpital avant 2 semaines.
Quelle malchance!


 

 

	ANALYSE DE LA SITUATION


Pas de chance pour ce pauvre Jim qui vient d'avoir cet accident. De nombreux événements se sont enchaînés, sans que Jim puisse agir.

Plusieurs actions se sont déroulées sans l'intervention de Jim: percuté par un bus, éjecté de voiture, emmené en ambulance... Pour décrire ces actions qui s'exercent sur une personne sans qu'il y ait intervention de celle-ci, pour décrire un processus, une série d'actions qui s'enchaînent pour obtenir un résultat final, on utilise le passif, qui fait peur à bien des francophones.

 

	ATTENTION DANGER! :-)


Le passif n'est pas bien compliqué à comprendre. C'est juste une histoire de 'boîtes' qu'on déplace pour former de nouvelles phrases. Ce qui pose problème, et ce qui fait donc que des erreurs sont commises, c'est qu'il faut connaître sur le bout des doigts les temps. Si vous n'êtes pas un maestro des temps (présent, futur, prétérit...), cela ne fonctionnera pas.

Pré-requis à cette leçon: tous les temps (leçons précédentes)
Vous allez maintenant comprendre pourquoi il y a une 3e colonne à la liste des verbes irréguliers! :-)

 

	LE PASSIF, UN SIMPLE JEU DE LEGOS (TM) :-)


The coach hit Jim.

C'est une phrase à la voie active: le sujet de la phrase (le bus) fait l'action (percuter).

Le pauvre Jim ne peut malheureusement rien faire.

Au passage, on se souvient que 'hit' est la forme au prétérit du verbe irrégulier 'to hit, hit, hit' (un verbe irrégulier pas trop compliqué, pour une fois)

 

-> On va donc essayer de dire que Jim a été percuté par le car.

C'est une phrase à la voie passive: Jim ne fait rien dans cette histoire. Il subit l'action du car.

Résultat:

Jim was hit by the coach.
 

Jim: sujet grammatical

was: auxiliaire BE au prétérit (temps de la phrase de démarrage + temps justifié par le contexte)

hit: ... hum... non, ce n'est pas du prétérit, c'est un participe passé - participe passé irrégulier. Comme en français: 'percuté'

by the coach: indique qui a fait l'action. En grammaire, on appelle cela un complément d'agent. Il est introduit par BY.

 

Voilà, ce n'est pas bien compliqué. On peut se baser sur le français.

Actif: The coach hit Jim.

Passif: Jim was hit by the coach.
On peut remarquer que chaque bloc s'est déplacé et que cela forme une croix. 'Jim' qui était en fin de phrase se retrouve au début et 'the coach' se retrouve à la fin. 

 

	ON RESUME!


Pour dire qu'une action est faite par quelqu'un ou quelque chose... pour décrire un processus, une série d'actions qui s'exercent sur quelqu'un ou quelque chose sans son intervention, on utilise le passif.
Construction:
auxiliaire be conjugué au temps de la voie active (temps déterminé par le contexte) + participe passé
On se souvient que le participe passé est obtenu de cette façon:
Verbes réguliers: Base verbale (le verbe sans TO) auquel on rajoute -ED
Verbes irréguliers: il n'y a pas de règle, il faut les apprendre
 

	Jim
	is
was
has been
will be
had been
	hit
hit
hit
hit
hit
	présent simple
prétérit simple
present perfect
futur
past perfect


 

Bien sûr, il faut adapter: Jim and Sandra have been thrown out of their car.

 

Facile, non?

On utilise by + complément d'agent pour décrire qui fait l'action QUAND CELA EST NECESSAIRE ET QUAND ON LE CONNAIT.

Ex: His car was stolen by Peter yesterday. (On connaît le voleur et on veut le préciser)

ou: His car was stolen yesterday. (Ce qui est important, c'est que sa voiture n'est plus là).

 

 

TEST
Avez-vous bien compris?
 

Complétez les phrases par l'un de ces verbes à la voix passive. Attention aux temps. Chaque verbe ne sert qu'une fois.
wash - discover - steal - deliver - clean


Questions:


Your car ______________________________ tomorrow. 
The hotel rooms ______________________________ every day. 
America ______________________________ by Christopher Columbus in 1492 
Their new car ______________________________ last weekend. 
That silk blouse must ______________________________ by hand. 




II) Mettre à la voix passive: The cat ate the mouse. ______________________________ 
Peter has eaten all the cakes. ______________________________ 
Sarah will sell our house. ______________________________






REPONSES:

1) will be delivered 
2) are cleaned 
3) was discovered 
4) was stolen 
5) be washed 
6) The mouse was eaten by the cat 
7) All the cakes have been eaten by Peter. 
8) Our house will be sold by Sarah.



EXPLICATIONS: 

3) (attention, beaucoup de gens oublient une syllabe en ajoutant le -ED: dis-co-ver-ed)



 

Utiliser le passif
1) A quoi ça sert?
Le passif permet de mettre en valeur l'action et l'auteur de l'action:

Cats eat mice. Les chats mangent les souris.
>> tournure passive: Mice are eaten by cats. Les souris sont mangées par les chats.
Grâce au passif, on met l'accent sur la 'barbarie' :-) des chats et sur leurs actes délictueux :-)
NB: 'mouses' n'existe pas. C'est un pluriel irrégulier.

 

2) Formation
C'est facile!

Reprenons nos exemples:
	VOIX ACTIVE
	VOIX PASSIVE

	Cats eat mice. Les chats mangent les souris.
	Mice are eaten by cats. Les souris sont mangées par les chats.

	A thief killed our neighbour. Un voleur a tué notre voisin.
	Our neighbour was killed by a thief. Notre voisin a été tué par un voleur.



a- Le 'système de la croix'
On remarque d'office que dans la transformation à la voix passive, le sujet (qui était en 1ère position) devient complément d'agent (en dernière position) et le C.O.D. (qui était à la fin) se retrouve en première position. Si on trace des traits, cela forme une croix.

Bon, d'accord, ce n'est pas très clair. Prenons notre logiciel de dessin favori pour éclaircir tout cela.
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Our neighbour was killed by a thief.




Quelle débauche de moyens :-)

 

b- Auxiliaire BE + participe passé
Pour former le passif, on utilise l'auxiliaire BE (conjugué au temps de la phrase de départ), suivi du participe passé.

Cela veut dire que si la phrase est au prétérit, on garde le même temps pour la phrase au passif et on conjugue donc BE au prétérit: was/were.

Pour le participe passé, c'est plus compliqué. Si le verbe est régulier, il suffit de rajouter -ED comme au prétérit, mais pour les verbes irréguliers, il faut se réeférer à la 3e colonne de la liste des verbes irréguliers.

 

c- Exemples à tous les temps
Pour être bien sûr que tout est clair, voici un petit tableau-exemple à tous les temps:

	TEMPS
	VOIX ACTIVE
	VOIX PASSIVE

	> Présent simple
	Sandra uses a computer
	A computer is used by Sandra

	> Présent en BE + ING
	Sandra is using a computer
	A computer is being used by Sandra

	> Prétérit
	Sandra used a computer
	A computer was used by Sandra

	> Present perfect
	Sandra has used a computer
	A computer has been used by Sandra

	> Plus-que-parfait
	Sandra had used a computer
	A computer had been used by Sandra

	> Futur
	Sandra will use a computer
	A computer will be used by Sandra

	> Conditionnel
	Sandra would use a computer
	A computer would be used by Sandra


 

d- Le problème du complément d'agent
On n'est pas obligé d'indiquer 'by + ...' systématiquement.
On n'indique le complément d'agent que quand il apporte une information intéressante.

Exemple: Our neighbour has been killed by someone. Notre voisin a été tué par quelqu'un. 
'by someone' n'apporte aucune information intéressante. On le supprime. Our neighbour has been killed.
MAIS (contre exemple):
Christopher Columbus discovered America in 1492.
America was discovered by Christopher Columbus in 1492.
(L'Amérique a été découverte par Christophe Colomb en 1492 - c'est une information intéressante, on la met).
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Exercice:
Mettre à la voix passive...
Attention aux verbes irréguliers pour les participes passés!



Questions:


1. My grandfather built this house in 1925. ______________________________ 
2. This man has killed our dog. ______________________________ 
3. Everyday, this shop sells very good cakes. ______________________________ 
4. Peter will do this work tomorrow. ______________________________ 
5. Sandra is writing a love letter. ______________________________






REPONSES:

1) This house was built by my grandfather in 1925. 
2) Our dog has been killed by this man. 
3) Everyday, very good cakes are sold by this shop. 
4) This work will be done by Peter tomorrow. 
5) A love letter is being written by Sandra.



EXPLICATIONS: 

1) (Cette maison a été construite par mon grand-père en 1925 - prétérit simple).
2) (Notre chien a été tué par cet homme - present perfect)
3) (Tous les jours, de très bons gâteaux sont vendus par ce magasin - présent simple).
4) (Ce travail sera fait par Peter demain - futur).
5) (Une lettre d'amour est en train d'être écrite par Sandra. Dans ce cas, on préférera la voix active, moins lourde. - présent en BE + ING)






Bon, finalement, ce n'était pas si compliqué que cela. :-)
La seule vraie difficulté vient du fait qu'il faut connaître tous les temps sur le bout des doigts, et également les verbes irréguliers.




Voix passive
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Le passif se forme avec to be + participe passé.
 

Exemples :

He is told a story (to be au présent)

The house was built 2 years ago (to be au prétérit)

Those flowers will be bought (to be au futur)
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Le passif peut correspondre à un passif français.
 

This book was taken by Jim
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Le passif peut correspondre à une tournure avec 'on'
 

English is spoken in that shop
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Le passif peut être employé avec certains verbes à 2 compléments
 

A toy was given to the child/ the child was given a toy

Noter que la 2éme tournure est habituellement employée
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Le passif peut être suivi d'un infinitif
 

I was told to come in

He was asked to work better

She is expected to come tomorrow

They were seen to leave early

 

[image: image8.png]


Le passif est employé dans un style formel avec certains verbes
 

She was thought to be in London but she was in Paris

They are known to have lived here for 5 years

It is believed that he is very rich

 

 

Exercice : Après avoir lu les phrases à la voix active, reconstituez les phrases en désordre à la voix passive.
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Questions:

built. | A | is | house | 
asked | The | be | quiet. | were | children | to | 
expected | next | She | week. | come | is | to | 
in | spoken | office. | English | the | is | 
is | that | weather | It | said | will | be | the | bad | tomorrow. | 
ready. | were | was | dinner | Her | guests | that | the | told | 
will | shown | flats | They | be | several | next | week. | 
seen | take | a | She | to | taxi. | was | 
50 | for | to | years. | married | been | have | are | known | They | 
shouting. | He | to | stop | be | told | will | 







REPONSES:

A house is built. The children were asked to be quiet. She is expected to come next week. English is spoken in the office. It is said that the weather will be bad tomorrow. Her guests were told that the dinner was ready. They will be shown several flats next week. She was seen to take a taxi. They are known to have been married for 50 years. He will be told to stop shouting.




                                                         Voix passive
 
Mettre le verbe au passif. Attention aux temps indiqués entre / /. Parfois, il faut utiliser des modaux, qui sont ajoutés entre parenthèses.


Questions:


1. My brother-in-law ______________________________ (bite) by a dog. /preterite/ 
2. The table ______________________________ (set) for two. /preterite/ 
3. Most of the coffee they had been given ______________________________ (sell) by the students. /preterite/ 
4. The essays ______________________________ (correct). /future/ 
5. Seafood ______________________________ (must/freeze). 
6. We ______________________________ (answer) rudely. /preterite/ 
7. A letter ______________________________ (can/write). 
8. She ______________________________ (could/contact) by him. 
9. Last Sunday,at the exhibition, he ______________________________ (see) by someone. /preterite/ 
10. This medication ______________________________ (test) by physicians. /present: BE + ing/ 
11. The windows ______________________________ (close). /preterite/






REPONSES:

1) was bitten 
2) was set 
3) was sold 
4) will be corrected 
5) must be frozen 
6) were answered 
7) can be written 
8) could be contacted 
9) was seen 
10) is being tested 
11) were closed





                                                                     Passif
 
Example :

They have made a cake.
==> A cake has been made.

NB1: don't put commas
NB2: sentences 4, 7 and 9 are difficult.



Questions:


1. They were serving tea. ______________________________ 
2. You can't rely on him. ______________________________ 
3. They will have to call the doctor. ______________________________ 
4. They offered us a cup of tea. ______________________________ 
5. Somebody will have to deal with the problem. ______________________________ 
6. Somebody gave her a book on wildlife. ______________________________ 
7. People say he is an excellent skier. ______________________________ 
8. Gizm0 made great exercises. ______________________________ 
9. Nothing can account for this behaviour. ______________________________ 
10. They have ordered the children to go out. ______________________________






REPONSES:

1) Tea was being served 
2) he can't be relied on 
3) The doctor will have to be called 
4) We were offered a cup of tea 
5) The problem will have to be dealt with 
6) She was given a book on wildlife 
7) He is said to be an excellent skier 
8) Great exercises were made by Gizm0 
9) This behaviour can't be accounted for 
10) The children have been ordered to go out




                                                       Voix passive
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Voici comment se contruit la forme passive selon le temps utilisé à la forme active.

	

	tense
active
passive
Simple Present
Peter builds a house. 

A house is built by Peter. 

Simple Past
Peter built a house. 

A house was built by Peter. 

Present Perfect
Peter has built a house. 

A house has been built by Peter. 

Past Perfect
Peter had built a house. 

A house had been built by Peter. 

will future
Peter will build a house.

A house will be built by Peter.

going-to future
Peter is going to build a house in summer.

A house is going to be built in summer by Peter.




L'exercice consiste à reconnaître la voie passive de la voie active. Choisissez l'option.
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Questions:


1) Boys like to play soccer. __________________
passive
active
?

2) This room has been painted in blue. __________________
passive
?
active

3) Cricket is played in Australia. __________________
passive
active
?

4) I am given a book. __________________
passive
active
?

5) We have lost our keys. __________________
?
passive
active

6) You might see dolphins here. __________________
active
passive
?

7) The report must be completed by next Friday. __________________
?
active
passive

8) They were singing a song. __________________
passive
active
?

9) A letter was written to her. __________________
?
active
passive

10) The bike is being repaired. __________________
passive
active
?







REPONSES:

1. active
2. passive
3. passive
4. passive
5. active
6. active
7. passive
8. active
9. passive
10. passive




                                         D'actif je deviens passif!
 
 [image: image12.png]


 S'assurer que l'on sait conjuguer BE à tous les temps (forme affirmative, interrogative ou négative) - [image: image13.png]


 Avoir revu le 'mécanisme' qui permet le passage 'actif => passif' - [image: image14.png]


 Connaître le participe passé des verbes irréguliers ( les verbes réguliers ont un participe passé en -ed)-



Questions:


1. The police arrested two thieves. ______________________________ 
2. Inspector Moody will question them. ______________________________ 
3. A secretary typed the reports. ______________________________ 
4. Did the two thieves ask for a counsel? ______________________________ 
5. Their family have found a good counsel. ______________________________ 
6. Has the counsel advised them? ______________________________ 
7. Has Mr. Advice seen them? ______________________________ 
8. Mr. Advice should send a letter to the judge. ______________________________ 
9. The director has to sign it first. ______________________________ 
10. The prisoners can borrow books. ______________________________ 
11. Will the prisoners need money? ______________________________ 
12. Prisoners ate unhealthy food. ______________________________ 
13. A psychiatrist must see these prisoners once a month. ______________________________ 
14. Does a nurse look after them when they are seriously ill? ______________________________ 
15. We call for a doctor in that case. ______________________________ 
16. Are they building a library? ______________________________ 
17. Journalists usually ask lots of questions. ______________________________ 
18. Journalists have to write good articles. ______________________________ 
19. The prisoners don't read your newspaper! ______________________________ 
20. Well, they should (...read it) ! ______________________________






REPONSES:

1) Two thieves were arrested by the police. 
2) They will be questionned by Inspector Moody. 
3) The reports were typed by a secretary. 
4) Was a counsel asked for by the two thieves? 
5) A good counsel has been found by their family. 
6) Have they been advised by the counsel? 
7) Have they been seen by Mr. Advice? 
8) A letter should be sent to the judge by Mr. Advice. 
9) It has to be signed by the director first. 
10) Books can be borrowed by the prisoners. 
11) Will money be needed by the prisoners? 
12) Unhealthy food was eaten by prisoners. 
13) These prisoners must be seen by a psychiatrist once a month. 
14) Are they looked after by a nurse when they are seriously ill? 
15) A doctor is called for in that case. 
16) Is a library being built? 
17) Lots of questions are usually asked by journalists. 
18) Good articles have to be written by journalists. 
19) Your newspaper isn't read by the prisoners! 
20) Well, it should be!



EXPLICATIONS: 

1) Prétérit de BE =>were + arrested =>forme passive
2) Futur de BE => will be + questioned => forme passive
3) Prétérit de BE => were + typed => forme passive
4) Prétérit de BE=> was + asked => forme passive /interrogative
5) Present perfect de BE => has been + found => forme passive
6) Present perfect de BE => has been +advised => forme passive/ interrogative
7) Present perfect de BE => have been + seen=> forme passive /interrogative
8) Avec 'should', BE devient => should be + sent=> forme passive
9) avec has to', BE => has to be + signed=> forme passive
10) Avec 'can', BE => can be + borrowed => forme passive
11) futur de BE => will be + needed =>forme passive/interrogative
12) Prétérit de BE => was + eaten=>forme passive
13) Avec 'must', BE => must be + seen=>forme passive
14) Présent de BE => are + looked after=> forme passive/interrogative
15) Présent de BE => is + called for=>forme passive
16) Présent progressif de BE => is being + built=>forme passive
17) Présent de BE => are + asked=>forme passive
18) Avec 'have to', BE => have to be + written=>forme passive
19) Présent de BE+ négation => isn't + read=>forme passive
20) avec 'should', BE => should be =>forme passive



